AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION
March 20, 2023
7P.M.

Parchment City Commission
Mayor Robert D. Britigan III

Vice Mayor Thomas Jordan Commissioner Holly Evans

Commissioner Tammy Cooper Commissioner Robin Madaras

Commissioner Doug Fooy Commissioner Michael Conner
Officers

City Manager Nancy R. Stoddard
City Attorney Robert Soltis
City Treasurer/Clerk Shannon Stutz

. Call to Order

. Pledge of Allegiance

. Roll Call

. Approval of Minutes
From the City Commission Meeting of March 6, 2023

. Additions/Changes to the Agenda - Approval

., Citizen Comments — Items ON the Agenda

If you wish to comment regarding items ON ihe agenda, please follow the format below:

o State your name and address for the records
e You are allowed up to 5 minutes for your comments
» Please let us know if you require special accommodations by notifying the Clerk



s Reminder: You will be making a statement, without discussion from the
Commission. You are always welcome to make an appoiniment with the City
Manager to further discuss your comments.

7. Consent Agenda
Items on the consent agenda will be dealt with one vote by the City Commission
unless a Commissioner requests an item be dealt with individually.

Motion to RECEIVE OR APPROVE as indicated:
i.  Warrant No. 1485 — action
i1.  Warrant No. 1486 - action
iii. Credit Card Statement February 2023 — action
iv. February 2023 Financial Statement - receive
v. KATS Technical Committee Meeting Minutes 2-9-2023 —receive
vi. Kindleberger Park Pavilion 5 Reservation, Morey Baby Shower - action

8. Unfinished Business

9. New Business
A. Parks and Recreation Tree Enhancement Recommendation Presentation, Cheryl
Lyon-Jenness - receive
B. Parchment Little League Parade - action

10. Citizen Comments — Items ON or OFF the Agenda
Persons wishing to comment on items that ave on/off the agenda are instructed to
please follow the same format as Citizen Comments for items on the agenda.

11. Mayor and Commissioner Comments

12. City Manager Comments

13. Adjournment



10.

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION HELD ON ‘
MONDAY MARCH 6, 2023, 1

Call to order

Mayor Britigan called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. then led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call,

Present: Mayor Britigan, Vice Mayor Jordan, Commissioners Cooper, Evans, Fooy, and Madaras. City Manager
Stoddard, Treasurer/Clerk Stutz, Attorney Soltis,

Absent; Conner.

Moved by Vice Mayor Jordan, supported by Commissioner Coaoper to excuse the absence of Commissioner Conner. Motion
Carried.

Minutes
Moved by Commissioner Madaras, supported by Vice Mayor Jordan to approve the amended minutes of the February 20,
2023 Regular meeting. Motion Carried.

Additions or changes to the agenda.
None. Moved by Commissioner Evans supported by Commissioner Fooy to approve the agenda as presented. Motion

Carried.

Citizen Comments — Items ON the Agenda

None.
Consent Agenda
A, Questions by Commissioners were answered regarding specific items. Moved by Commissioner Madaras, supported

by Commissioner Cooper to receive the consent agenda items. Motion Carried.

Unfinished Business
None.

New Business

A, Appointments to Kindleberger Arts Comunission — action. Mayor Britigan explained that Robin Madaras as a
commissioner, would have a 1 year term (ending 12/31/23), and Caroline Garber as an at-large member would have a 3 year i
term (ending 12/31/24 as she completes the term of Liz Emmons). Moved by Commissioner Cooper, supported by Vice :
Mayor Jordan to appoint Robin Madaras and Caroline Garber as recommended in the memo dated 3/3/23. Motion Carried.

B. Repaving Wilson, W Glenguile and Roberts Lane - action. Mayor Britigan reminded everyone that this body
approved the repaving of these streets in an action in August of 2022; now that the work is closer to being done, the bid has
been updated and increased by $3223. City Manager Stoddard added that it includes residential, school and business districts.
She then answered questions. Moved by Commissioner Evans, suppotted by Commissioner Madaras to approve using
$3225.00 additional ARPA monies for the paving of Wilson, W Glenguile and Roberts Lane as presented, with a
corresponding budget amendment and authorizing City Manager Stoddard to sign all docurments related to the action. Roll
call vote was as follows;

Ayes: Britigan, Cooper, Evans, Fooy, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.

Absent: Conner.

Abstain; None.

Motion Carried 6-0.

Citizen Comments
None.

Mayor and Commissioner Comments
Commissioner Madaras said she is glad to see more roads being paved. ;

Commissioner Evans asked about Bike Week; the Mayor answered that action can be taken on an individual basis.

Mayor Britigan reminded everyone of the Capital Conference (CapCon) through the Michigan Municipal League on April
18-19.




Minutes of the March 6, 2023 City of Parchment Commission Page 2 of 2

11. City Manager Comments/Reports
City Manager Stoddard invited anyone who has questions or concerns to call and discuss them with her.

12. Adjournment
There being no further business to come before the Commission, it was moved by Commissioner Cooper and supported by
all to adjourn the meeting at 7:17 p.m.
Shannon Stutz, City Clerk



City of Parchment
Check Register Report
Warrant 1485

Check Check Date vendor Name Description Amount
37477 03/06/2023 COMPANION LIFE LIFE & AD&D INS - MARCH - LIFC3712 66.50
37478 03/06/2023 CONCORD THEATRICALS CORP. GREASE - FEES - PERFORMANCE {2ND PAYMENT 6,815.00
37479 03/06/2023 CUSTOM SANDBLASTING 76 VETERAN'S MEMORIAL BRICKS ENGRAVED (3 1,900.00
37480 03/06/2023 KALAMAZOO OIL CO. FUEL CHARGES - 2/1 TO 2/15/2023 CUSTOMER 199.35
37431 03/06/2023 KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP POLICE FIRE CONTRACLT - FEBRUARY 42,259.50
Police $36,684.50, Fire $5,575.00
37482 03/06/2023 PITSCH CCMPANIES STARTING DEMOLITION @ 221 W, THOMAS 650.00
37483 03/08/2023 POINT AND PAY MONTHLY SERVICE FEE - JANUARY PARTNER CO 50.00
37434 03/06/2023 PRECISION TREE CARE TREE REMOVAL- 315 N QRIENT 1,500.00
37485 03/06/2023 RIVERRUN PRESS 300 - 2023 CAR SHOW FLYERS 166.94

37486 03/06/2023 THE FOUNTAINS BINGO FOR BAGS 2023 10,509.40




City of Parchment

Check Register Report

Warrant 1486

Check Check Date  Vendor Name Description Amount
37491 03/15/2023  CUSTOM SANDBLASTING 13 VETERAN'S MEMORIAL BRICKS ENGRAVED 325.00
37492 03/15/2023  DEREK MENCHINGER BINGO FOR BAGS SOUND 350.00
37453 03/15/2023  FORD, KRIEKARD, SOLTIS & WISE GEMERAL + POLICE MATTERS - FEBRUARY 1,062.50
Genl $887.50 Pol $175.00
37494 03/15/2023  HARVEY CONSULTING JANUARY + FEB 2023 CONSULTING 675.00
37485 03/15/2023  JULIE HEASLEY BAGS FOR BINGO RECEIFTS 2,534.48
37456 03/15/2023  KALAMAZCO OIL CO. FUEL CHARGES - 2/16 TO 2/28/23 308.36
37497 03/15/2023  KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP POLICE + FIRE SERVICES CONTRACT - MARCH 42,259.50
Pal $36,684.50 Fire $5575.00
37498 03/15/2023  MLIVE MEDIA GRCUP PUBLIC NOTICES - BOR 542.30
37499 03/15/2023  NANCY STODDARD ZOOM - CNLINE MEETING PLATFORM 16,95
37500 03/15/2023  PREIN & NEWHOF COMMERCE LANE TRESTLE RMOVAL TO 02/25/23 7,288.40
37501 03/15/2023  SBIS EMPLOYEE INS - APRIL 2023 & COBRA ANNUA 12,678.49
37502 03/15/2023  SEVERANCE ELECTRIC CO INC TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINT ~ FEBRUARY 2023 120.00
37503 03/15/2023  SIGNCRAFTERS SIGN - BINGO FOR BAGS (DISCOUNT QF $40 F 80.00




Pags 2 of 4

Account Number: XCCCCOOOOU XXXX 1546

Statement Ctoslng Date: 0Z/27/23

S - % S PR
Name and Account Number Gredit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity
CAMRCN J BOEKHOVEN

OO 8114 $3,000 $0.00 $206.18 $0.00 $806.18
NANCY R STODDARD

OO0 XXX XXXK 7241 $5.000 $0.00 $863.60 $0.00 $953.60
TY JWOLTRUIS

HXRK XXX XXX 7674 $3.000 $0.00 $525.54 $0.00 $5265.54
SHANNCN STUTZ

HOORK KR XXX 9125 $5,000 $106.27 $1.512.71 $0.00 $1,406.44

BILL CAHILL Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Actlvity ‘
JKHIHK XARN XXX 1801 $5,000 $0.00 $6653.49 $0.00 $653.49
Post Date Tran Date  Reference Number T lon Description VCN Amount
13 01/30 55436873030260306851870 RATHCO SAFETY SUPPLY | PORTAGE MI 522,26
02/08 02/08 554368730392803093276978 RATHCO SAFETY SUPPLY | 269-3230153 MI 118.25
02/23 0z/21 02305373023100137285608 MENARDS KALAMAZOO EAST COMSTOCK TOWN MI $12.95
JIM DUBY Credit Limlt Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity i
JOOOC 0000 XXX 1892 $3,000 $0.00 $520.88 $0.00 $520.89
Past Date Tran Date  Reference Number T tlon Deserlption VCN Amaount
01/31 01/30 55417343031730313257188 APPLIANCE PARTS 314-5939136 MQ $48.83
41431 01/30 §5417343031730313357055 APPLIANCE PARTS 314-99391586 MO %158.30
02/08 02/02 85140513034500016600111 ELECTROTORQLUE [NC CORUNNA M| 125.84
02/13 62110 02305373042100173100295 MENARDS KALAMAZOG EAST COMSTOCK TOWN MI $2.3
92113 02/10 02305373042000868927048 TRACTCOR SUPPLY #1272 KALAMAZOO MI $47.99
Q92/23 02121 85179243053880000955329 CARLETCN EQUIP CO-KALA KALAMAZOQ MI $148.56
CAMRON J BOEKHOVEN Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity
KHXK OO XXXX 8114 $3,000 $0.00 $B06.18 $0.00 $608.18
Post Date Tran Date  Reference Number T lon Description VCN Amount
91430 01/27 55432863027202607621808 AMZN MKTP US*4U1V06163 AMZN.COM/BILL WA 17.82
a2/ 01/30 0230537303711001 30407736 AZOG EAST COMSTOCK TOWN MI 35.61
02/01 61431 75500593031900016800014 MARTIN SPRING & DRIVE KALAMAZOO M| 45.00
02102 0131 02305373032100142648640 ARDS KALAMAZOO EAST COMSTOCK TOWN M| $9.64
02/03 82/01 85179243033080005540930 STEENSMA LAWN AND POWE KALAMAZOOQ MI $46.71
02/08 02/04 55432063035108854750427 AMZN MKTP US*SJZRH?IDS AMZN.COM/BILL WA $371.94
02/15 02/13 02305373045100148387072 NARDS KALAMAZOO EAST COMSTOCK TOWN MI $236.82
02/18 G214 023053730461001436045802 MENARDS KALAMAZOO EAST COMSTOCK TOWN M| $39.54
NANCY R STODDARD Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity
OO 000 XXX 7241 §5,000 $0.00 $953.50 $60.00 $953.60
Post Date Tran Date  Refersnce Number Transaction Description VCN Amottnt
427 01/26 75500593026900010300038 COFFICE OF DRAIN COMMIS KALAMAZOO M1 $345.00
92110 82/09 15314683040009939038043 CONCORD THEATRICALS CO NEW YORK NY $308.680
Q2/22 0221 75500593052000010500022 REGISTER CF DEEDS KALAMAZCO MI $300.00

{transactions continued on next page}

00000000 - 000340 - 0501 - 8002 -2




Page 3 of 4

Account Number: 000 XXXX XXXX 1546
Statement Closing Date: 02/27/23

TY J WOLTHUIS Cradit Limit Cradits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity
XX HXXK MK 7674 $3,000 $0.00 $525.54 $0.00 $525.54
Post Date Tran Date  Reference Numher Transaction Description VCN Amount
02/15 02114 0543664 3048000442839428 AlS CONS EQ GRAND RAPI GRAND RAPIDS M| $525.54
SHANNON 8TUTZ Credit LImit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activ@]
XU XXXX XXXX 9128 $5,000 $106,27 $1512.71 $0.00 $1,406.44
Fost Date Tran Date  Reference Number Transactlon Description VCN Ameaunt
1727 01/26 32711163028000008794897 PIXELVINE FREEPCRT M| $85.00
01730 01728 55432863028202519508485 SPECTRUM 855-707-7328 MO $5119.98
02/06 Q0z/04 054101930356105028481847 QUILL CORPORATION BOC-982-3400 SC $182.76
02/06 gz/02 85140513034900018700026 CORNERSTONE OFFICE SYS AVALENCE@CORN Mi $363.21
02/08 Q2107 82711163038000008723595 PIXELYINE FREEPORT MI $89.7
02/14 02/13 42712813045000000246035 CORPORATE TECHNOLCGIES 7018934056 MN -$106.27
02114 02113 82711163044000007233515 PIXELVINE FREEPORT MI $75.
02/16 a2/15 627129713047000000281780 CORPORATE TECHNOLOGIES 7018234056 MN $438.29
02117 02118 02305373045000571199192 USPS PO 2549110002 KALAMAZCO MI $28.78
o227 02{28 55432663057205859750236 SPECTRUM 855-707-7328 MO $149.97




LZGS TS ELO'T 19°65T 6k 928°T 00" 00¥% ‘2 31D TPSH 000°ZZL-002-T0T
000 00°004 000 0070 00°00L uotiesuadwo] §,I9qI0M 000°02L-002-T0T
£STETT (08°90L2) 000 087904722 a0°000 ‘02 uoTsusq 000 8TL-002-T0T
9G5°9ZT  (¥€£°290°T) 000 £ Z90°S Q0000 ¢ 2TCIIoNPSI S0UBINSUT TO0 9TL-00E-TOT
F8°GS PO TEQ'0E 2L 9PL ¥ 96°896'LE 007000782 oouRINSUL 2ITT/TeiTdson 00079TL-002-T0T
Z0' S ST°828°F 05289 G8'ILY’S 00°00570T AJpaInoss TerHog 0007 STL-002-T0T
I 151 0% 61022 81°€2¢'2 0908652 00°000‘8F SWTL Jaed - TToxdAed 000 E0L-002-T0T
£1°09 S6°TV0‘6F PO L98 8 G0 856 ‘€L 00000 ‘£2T ouITL TEnd - TToxAeg 000" Z0L-002-T0T
UOTIBRIISTUTURY - 00z 3deq
6T LL £9°122°L 09°8€1°'T €L 8LYFE 007008 1€ oaT3eTsTheT - 0T 23deq Te3OL
000 00 008 000 0070 00" 00€E SNOJUBRTISOETH 000" SG6-00T-TOT
SLTET SLTZIE¥ 0L LY 527189 00°000°S butystTang ¥ Burtiutag 000°006-00T-T0T
07" TL 00" ZLS 0G0 00°82F ‘T 00 000’2 uotTingrijuoy Buryressem TO0 0B8—00T~TOT
00" E¥ 00 0LS 00" 5L 00" 0EF 00 000 T UQTAOWCT A7 TUnEEGD 000" 0BE-00T-T0T
007001 {00°SL) 0g0-0 00°SL 0070 ButuTell ¥ S93NITISUT 000°098-00T-T0T
GLT0E 8L78E0'T 000 zZ 19¥ 00°006°T seng 3 sdIysIaquai 000 0£8-00T-T0T
£9°L0T {0G°SI6) 00" 0LT 05°ST6'2T 0070002t *AJSg TEN3oRIJUOD/TRUOTSS2F0I] 000°008-00T-T0T
€001 (TZ°1%) 00°0 T2 1ZL 00" 00L se1Tddng Butieasdy 000 0vL-00T-TOT
£8°0E GET8ET 0L 8 59°19 00002 BIROTPIW 000 2ZL-00T-TOT
0070 00°082 000 0070 00° 052 uoTjeguadwod g,IS2YI0M 000 0ZL-00T-TOT
00°1E 057985 0¢"LE 05 g9z 00°058 Ajtanoeg TetTzOg 000" GTL~-00T-TOT
61" ¥6 00°59F 007009 00"SEG ‘L 00°000°8 SWTL 3Iegd - TTOTARG 000" £0L-00T-10T
aaTieTsThaT ~ Q0T 3dea
gssInj} Tpusdxyg
vZ° LY Z1 160659 0T L897ECT 88°ZE0EGE'T 00 ¥ZT'2TOE SAONIATI THIOL
2" Lo Z1 160659 0T 189 'CET 88°ZEL0'E5E’T 00 ¥ZT°2T0°2 000 3dsg Te3OL
00°00T (LT T) 00°0 LT T 0070 Jaoyg ® I2ag sitsodsg 000°969-000-T0T
6E°87% 66°98L°C £6°90T T0°€19'2C 00 00F‘S gaoanog burourutg I=1310 000 669-000-T0T
69799 PE'96L°S 00°GT 99'£09 ‘1T 00'00F LT STOAURTTE2ETH 000 #69-000-T0T
0070 0070007012 0070 000 000007012 PeSUISAQ I0J JUSWSSINAUTSY 000" 089-000-T0T
000 00°000°52% 000 000 00 C00’‘s2w BursTey pung 100 SL9-000-T0T
£9°5 0T THE'¥ 000 06°8SZ 00°00%°% SIUSUWASIAUL UC 1$3I37UI 000" 799-000-T0T
6t ¥E 167216 ¥ 09 -8z 60°L86'¢ 00-008°L SOUTd DTIIRIY 000°299-000-T0T
0070 007008 00" 0 0070 00°00% peispusy S90TAISE A0l sebieyd 000" Z£9-000-TOT
FETH9 00 €70 2L 000 00°LG66'62T 007000202 XEL S3TES 932315 0007 GLS-000~TO0T
c0'00T  {(08°0TT’22E) 80 €EBLEZT 08'0T1‘222 00°0 JueTd IBlem - QURID 83238 000" FFS—000-TOT
c0'e 00"2ST’9 000 000 00°25T9 glueIsn TRISPad 000" TFS—000-TOT
00°00T  (00"BET’LE) 000 00"8ET'LE 00°0 slueIs 23e1F 000" 0FS—C00-TOT
00°0 00"ZLT'EZ o0 000 00" ELT'EZ Butpund Teaspad Isylo 0007 825-000-TOT
LELY ST QLE'VF A ) G8°629'16 007000 °‘9€T SUCT3oATTO) 23SBEM PITOS 000" FSF-C00-T0T
00" G 00°00L"'2 000 000 00 00L‘e g2a4 UOT}ESIADDY 000" ESF-000~T0T
2E°LY 9£°171’g Z8 LEzT e F9°8L6'0T 00" 00L'ST §994 UOTSTASTIAED 000°2$7—-000-T0T
££°1Z 96°008°1TT 000 POTE6T E 00 0007ST S291 pUE $SUSDTT 000" TSP-000-T0T
99 86 LG E6E 89°609°1 £7°906 '8¢ 00'00€ ‘6¢ s98] UOTIOSTTOD 41 000" 8FF-000-T0T
8F " 26 65522 GZ T9t 17 FLL'E 007000’ soxe] uo AjTEusg 000" SFF-000-T0T
G6"LE 927698798 000 FLTOET'ES 00" QQ0°0FT ¥B], 9I0Y§ Jel§ AJTUNUMIO] TEIOT] 000" TF¥-000-T0T
£9°T0T  (¥8-5E) 000 FRT5EZ°Z 00°00Z°Z SSTITITORE TRTIISNPUL - SIHEL 000" S0F—-000-T0T
TL°66 0L°T6T°C 00°0 0ET80E'FOL 00°00S ‘997 SNUBABY HE[ 000" ¥0F-000-T0T
oon adeag
SoNUIADTH
ANOd TYEINISD - TOT Pung
asgsn {(TYRMONEY) TYHMON (ASYHADET) ASYAUOINT  (TYRHONIY) TYIWNION LA900d  AHINARY NOILAIUOSHd YAAHAN 1D
1209 % ADNYTYL £Z0¢/82/20 HINOKW £Z0z/82/20 £Z-2202

ATIYTIVAY

Z1/1 tabeg

d04 ALTATLOV

HONVIVL QLA

£Z0Z/8Z/20 DNIANZT qOI¥dd

LNINHDEYd 40 ALID ¥0d LU0dHY JENLIANAdXE ONY dONIATH

JuswyoIrg :dd
§gg :iIesn

WY LO:0T €202/9T/€0



66°FF £6°628°Z¢C SZ €T L0"0L2 8T 00 005 ‘1Y uoTsuUed

05729 0070086 0070 00°00S°T 0000’z STATILTPSJ SVURINISUT
£2°59 vET66Z°S1 TF°825°€ 99°00L"8Z 00000 'FF souRINSUT 2ITT/TeITdSOH
85°¢8 ST FEQ'T SYTP¥9 §8°59Z°§ 007 00€ 9 Ajranoss TETOOS
L2 79 ZETEFY '9E ?9°poC 8 807955759 00000 ‘20T SWTL TTNd - [Toxhed

000 8TL-0FP-T0T
TOO"9TL-0FF-TOT
000"9TL-0FF-T0T
000 STL-0F¥%-TOT
000 Z0L-0FP¥-T01

$ODTALSE DTLANG - 0pp 2830

z2Z°25 66°£T8'85 £1.°882 T0 982 %9 00 00T ‘€T 2ITd - 9¢f 2deg Telor
£5° %2 00'0ZETT 000 00°089 ‘¢ 00°000°ST Teztde) 000 0L6-9€E-TOT
000 ooToo0‘ot ooo 00°0 00 0000t SI0]DBIIUCH "JUTRH ¥ ITedsy 000°0€6-2£5-T0T
9L LS LETOFT'T £L°88T £9°666°T 0o 0oL’z S9TITTI20 000 0E6-8EE-T0T
60°L0T  (00°266) 0070 00°266 %1 00000 °%T Spuo" ¥ 20UBRINSUL 000 0T6-8EE-TOT
071§ LT TI%0Z 000 £8°8BST‘Z 0o 00z’y SUOTIED TULUIIO) 000 0GB-8EE-TOT
T9°LS B8G°GL9 ‘6T 00°0 A A2 00 000‘0L TATRE TENIIRIJUCD/TRUOTSSDIOL] 000" 008-9EE-TOT
000 007001 00" 0 000 00700T garrddng Ajgsgzes 000" 0BL-2€E~TOT
GZ0PT  (S%°z0p) 000 SPZ0%‘T 00°000°tT soTTddng eourujurel % ITedsy 000" GLL-2EE-TOT
LB'9T ZET1EB o0 89°89T 007000°T TIO 3 QUITOSED 000" 9%L-2€E-T0T
000 00°00T°S 000 000 00°00T°S ge1Tddng butjeaado 000 OFL-9EE-TOT
2Itd - g dsqg
6£°85 8061 ‘98T FT°8T8 Z6°8B6E'T9¢ 00 FTL LY 821708 - Qog 3deq T=3log
£E£°8S 0G5 2ZF 'E8T 0070 05 T6L°962 00°PTZ 0¥ ‘alag Tenloeljuc]/[RUOTSS=:I0Id 0007 008-00€-T0T
90729 76 LE VRN 20729 007 00T SAEDTIPOR 000" 22L-00E-T0T
Al aY 79 %L Z1'LF 9£°597 007002 A3TInDsg TeIDOS 000" STL-00€-T0T
76729 00°025°2 00094 00 08e’% 00°008°9 BWTL 3Ied - [[oXAed 000" £0L-00E£-T0T
20TTod - Qg adeq
Z1°8E SZ°'95%6 ‘ST GZ°182'T GLTEE8’S 00°008°52 saotaxag TebeT - 0Tz 3dea Te3lOL
PT LT 0070218 00°0GE 00" 089°T 00°00876 £I9338H BDTT0d-A9u1033Y 000" Z08-0T2-T0T
96°06 SZT9F8 L SZTEG GLTEGT’S 007000791 TeIausd - ASUICIAV 00G°T08-0TZ-TO0T
seotTadsg TebsT - pIe 3dea
50°GL 81-z62’%6 8€° 266 22T Z8°695798¢ 00"2Z8°18¢E UOT3IRIFSTUTURY - Q0Z 3dad TRIOL
TO'T0T  {00°0%%) 000 00°0S0 52 00008 k2 Teytde) 0007 0L6-002-T0T
00°00T ({£6°L92) 000 £6°L9E 000 SNOSUETTEDS TH 000" 656-002-T0T
gL°zoz (Ev-1E07’E) 0070 ZF IB6 'S 00°056°2 sxojoexjuod-juTer 3 Iredsy 000 0E£6-008-T0T
LT 9L Qe PF0°T 9% 09§ 0L7658°€E 00°00% ‘¥ SITITTTML 000°0Z6-002-T0T
£9°50T (007 00F) 000 00°005°L 00" 00T ‘L SPUCH % 90URINSUT 000 0T6-00Z-T0T
SZ°'95 00"5/8 000 00°SZT°T 0070002 putystigud % HutiUTIg 0007 006-002-T0T
ST E0T (107 1%) 00°0 TO TRE’T 00 00ET bututeal % §9INITISUL 0007098-002-T0T
6908 2STFTY T 98°58¢7 8%°GL8'S G 00E ‘L SUCTIED TUNIIGT 000 068-008-T0T
SLTG¥ 007159 05" L 00°6FS 00 002°T song » sdTUSISOUSH 000 0E8-00Z-T0T
FELL 79°291°¢ £9°670°C 9L LEE’L 000056 g30TALIDY TBINAWCH 000°508-00Z-T0T
¥6 29T  {EV 96EVT) ] £6°8T6 £F7 89T LE 00 2L8'2T 'AT®S TENIOBIAJUO)/TPUOTESBIOA] 000°008-002-T0T
[9°F1 £0°Z6LT 0G0 L6 L0E 00°001'2Z so71ddng S0URUDIUTEN ¥ ITEdSY 000" SLL-00Z-TOT
LL"6TIZ (9% G6E’E) ZETLLS 9% S6C’F 000002 so1Tddng buriex=dp 000" 0%FL—-00Z-T0T
£L78E EQ 08 F AR AN LE*650°C 00°006 'L obeisod 000" 0EL—00Z-T0T
P6790T (007 089) 000 00 08F ‘0T 00°008'6 1TFeusg JUSWSITIST YHWOT 000" ¥ZL—00Z-T0T
saanITPuSdRy
ANOA ITddED - 0T pungd
ausn {(TYHONGY) T¥IRAON (ISYEIDEA) ASYIMDNI  {'TYVFNONIY) TVINION IEZ9and CHANIWNY NOILAIEDSHA AN T
IDad % TONTIYL E£Z0E/BZ/ZC HIHOW £€0¢/8T/20 £2-2202
TIGTIIVAY b0d ALIALIOY HONYIYS LA

€Z02/82/20 HNIANA dOI¥dEd

C1/C tabeg LNEAWHDYYEd 40 ALID ¥02 LMOdHY HENLIONAdXA ONY HONIAEM

JusumoIeg tdd
S55 x9S

WY L0:0T €20¢/91/€0



£G°LO Z9°TOT 169 T8°¢28°¢28 BE FOT‘BFGE'T 00799250072 SHYNLIANIINT TYIOL
19 FL ZLTTSE'9¥ 67 0L6'8 87 86T ‘9¢€T 00065281 VANFTND 3 UOTIBBADSY ‘Exaed - TG4 deQ TBIOL
00°0 000009 000 000 0600079 Te3Tde) 000 0L6-TSL-TOT
62°9T ZOERE ‘¥T 000 86 9G5L ¥ 00°00Z°'62 SI030BIAJUC) "TUTER 3 ZTedsy 000 0E6-TSL-T0T
95756 AR 1789 96 F¥B8L'9 00001 L S9TITTIIN 000" 026-TSL-T0T
00°00T 000 00°0 00 00T "L 00°00T L spucg 3 J0UBRINSUT 000 0T6-TGL-TOT
00°00T (08B°Z80°%#E) 000 08°Z80'%T 00" o *ATRS TEN1ORIIU0D/TRUOTSS2I0Ig 000 008-TGL-TOT
co-o 00" 00F 000 000 00Topoe seTTddng Ajsjeg 000 08BL~TSL-TOT
11795 00°90L°S 86°G 00" F6Z ‘L 00 000 ET sorrddng soueusiutery 3 Jtedsy 000 SLL~TSL~TOT
L0718 60°29€ 0070 T6°LEF'Z 00 008’z TIO % 2ULTOsRD 000 97L-TSL—-TOT
62 €6 0" LS 0Z°956 96°26L 00058 SARD PO 000" EZL-TSL-TOT
000 00°00S°¢E 000 000 00°005°¢€ uorresusdmon £, 193108 000" 02L-TSL-TOT
£Z2°69 96°G%£’8 5061 PO FG9 ST 00 00072 uoTsuad 000" 8TL-TSL-TOT
0070 00°00%F ‘T 00" 0 00°0 00" 00F ‘T aTqTIoMped 20URINSUIL T00 9TL-TGL-TOT
€4°GE 8F"GFL'GT 69 F0T'T TG FSLS 00005 ‘%2 aDUBINSUT 9FT1/Te}TdsoH 000°9TL-TGL~-T0T
9916 £5°80% 95" 1T¥ LT TI6E’E 00" 00L’E Altanoeg TeTDOS 000" STL-TSL-TOT
LF €6 96°0§8°E 6877699 PO 6%¥T’GS 00° 00065 SwTL [INd - TToXAed 000" E0L-TSL-TOT
2INATND 3 UOTIRRIDSY ‘syIed - T6L 3deg
6L €9 ETTI8T TST FSTGGT 8T LLTBIB'TOZ 00° 000 ET¥ sasuadxy JUBID JUBRTL I23ep - 165 3ded TBIOL
00°00T (00" FALT'9%) 000 0O PLT'9F 00°0 Teztden 000 0L6-TAS-TOT
000071 (€£"6TL) 000 EEBTL an*o SI01DBIJUOD "JUTEBH ¥ ITRdsY 000 "0€6-TAS-TOT
007007  (LEF TFO°T) FST6TZ LE TR T 000 SSTATTTHL Q00 0Z6-TRS-T0T
00°00T  {00°000“T} 00700071 00°000°T 000 sang 3 sdTUSIDOWSH 000 0E8-1I65-T0T
8E" TG L6 BT8'00Z 00°9€6°9T £0'1I8T“CIT 00°000°ETH “AZSG TENIDBIZUCD/IBUOTSSDIOIL 000 008-T65-T0T
00 00T  (¥6°20T) 00°0 ¥6° 20T 00°0 se1Tddng butiexsdp 000 0FL-TES-TOT
sosuadxy JuUeRIs JUBTA I93BM - T66 1dad
LY LL 05 666 ‘68 89°08T ‘62 05°08¥%‘60¢% 00°08% ‘66E s90TAI®S DTTONd - 0FF 3d8d TEICL
ST TTS'T (007522 '8¢C) 0G0 00°SZg 0% o0 00c’e Teatden 000 0LE—0FF-TOT
007007 (697961 °E)} 007088 69°96T°F 000 SNOSUET[P@DSTH 000" S56-0FFP-TOT
GE'T6 £17999 687965 LB EELTT 00°008°T1T SZOIORIJUOD JUTeN ¥ ITedsy 000 0E6—0FF-T0T
61 0L 96 %¥9 '8 69°952°¢ FF GSE0Z 00°000'62 butaybrT 38211y 000°926-0FF-T0T
£Z 06 817058 8F " TSH ‘T 78 6B¥B YL 00-00L'8 SBTITTTIN 000 0Z6-0FF-TOT
L8 26 00" 82C¥ 0070 00°2LG'S 000009 gpuog 3 SOUBINEUT 000 0TE—-0FF-TOT
000 00 00s 000 000 007008 uoTjowodd A3 TUNWNICD 000 088—0FF-TOT
000 00008 000 0070 00 00€ Pututexr ¥ s23NATISUL 0007 098-07P-T0T
B 0LT  {(¥8760L) 86 61T F8°60L°T 00°000°T SUQTIRI TUINMCD 000 058-0F7-T0T
¥7 S5 00" T0¥ 000 00°66F 00°006 sang ¥ sdIySIDqUDH 000 0E8-0FP-TOT
9L"69 ZZLOG 0G0 8L ZBG'T 00 000°€ Te3usSy WIicITun 000 ST8—0FF-TOT
BV PL 88 LIZ'0E SZT0F9 ‘6 ZT 281 /88 00°00%'8TT sebIry) UOTIOBTTOD UsTqany 000" 0T8-0FF-TOT
£L9LT (BE°L9L) 8L08T PETLOL'T 00°000°T *AJSS TENJORIZUOD/[BUCTISSSIOId 000" 008-0FF-T0T
0070 00°00§ 00°0 00°0 00008 se1Tddng Anazes 000°08L-0%7-T10T
L7 00T (¥Li-8E) 8E°Z0¥ VL BEZ'S 00°00zZ°8 seTTddNg 8OUBPUSIUTEN 3 aATedey 000 GLL-0F7-TO0T
LLTVLT  {(B876BZ'C) CLTOFL 687689 7L 00" 00% ‘¥ TIC 3 2UTTOSED 0007 9%L-0%F-T0T
9L°T L0"9s%'2 000 £6°CH 0070062 sa11ddng Sutiexsdo 000" 0FL~0F5-T0T
0Z° €8 Z9°8%2 ZLT0ST 8E"TET'T 00T08%°T 2IeD TIPSR 000" 2ZL-0FF-T0T
0o o 00°009°¢ 000 0C 0 00°002°¢ uoTjesuado) €, I93I0M 000" 0ZL-0FF-TOT
saan]Tpuadxy
aNad TYIANED - TOT pund
aasn (TORONEY) TYIRMON (ASYAEIEA) IASYMMONI  (TVHNMONTY) TYIRE0N L9009 QHANTAY NOIIdId2S3ad qITAON 1D
1909 % FONYTEE £Z0Z/82/20 HINOK £e0e/Be/en £z-ze0z
TTIVTIEAY ¥Od ALIAILOY FONYTYE dLA

£C0¢/B8Z/C0 ONIONA qOIvdd

Z1/¢ rabeg

LNANHDEYd 40 ALID Y04 LUOdEd HUQLIANEdXE ONY dANIZARY

quomyoied :gd
g8g8 :aesn
W& L0:0T £Z0C/9T/EQ



SHANMLIONHIXE ¥ SUANHANYT A0 LEN

SHANLIANAIXE TYLOL
SHANIAHY TYLOL
TANOE TVYEENED - 10T pung

ONOH IVEENID - TOT pung

AHgHAN 1D

057971 09°686 "L 627198705 {og 1€1'1T) 00°8S8°2
£€G°L9 Z9°TOT’'TGY9 187628728 BE"FOT FSET 0079925007
¥ L9 Z1°160'659 0T LB9EET 88°ZE0'ESE’T 00 ¥ZT'2T0°T
Gas0 (TYREONEY) TYEON {(SYIIDEA) HSVHIONI  {TURHNONEY) TYHJON LdDa0d JTHIONINE
ILDag % ADNYTIVE £202/82/20 HLNOW £20e/82/20 £2-Z20z

ATV TIVAY H0d ALIATLDY HINYTIVE QLA

Z1/7 :abeg

£Z0Z/82/20 DNIANA AQTHEAA

ANENHIEYd 40 ALID ¥0d IHO4dHEd HHALTANAAXHE ANV JONEIAEY

NOILITAO5HEd

aJuswyoIRd f9Qq
§85 :asen
Wd L0:0T £20Z/9T1/¢€0



000 0070006 000 0070 00" 0006 3TES 000 EGL-BLP-Z0T
2094 F8 6L 00°0 9T 094 00°000'T TTC 2 2UTTOSED 000°9FL-8LF-Z0T
89°09 86" 8¢S L9°6 Z0° 16 00 0ST 2IEDTPSH 000 Z2ZL-8L¥-Z0T
000 007059 00" o 0070 00099 ucTiesusduod s,I2qICH 000 0ZL-8LY-Z0T
FLUTY 06°9%%°'¢C oc-o OT E8L°T 00" 002'% uoTsUsd 000" 8TL-8LY-Z0T
000 00052 0C0 00°0 00°0SE STUTIONPSA SOUEANSUL TO0 9 TL-8LY-Z0T
LT LY 69 TLZ'E £9°45¢ T£°820°2 00*00E'¥ SDURANSUL SITT/Te3Tds0H 000" 9TL-8LP-Z0C
T8 %9 Z1° 11 T T¥ 88°88¢ 00°009 A31Inoeg TeToOCS 000°STL-B8LF-Z0Z
55729 8E°0Z8°¢ L 8LY Z9°6LE’S 00 0001 sWTI TTnd - TIoIA=Rd 000" Z0L-BLF-Z0T
SDUBUS]UTIEN JI2]Uutm — gLy 3dsg
§9°2% 67°9L6'8T €9°FZF T TG ETT H1 00 060°€E S8D0TAISS DIJIEIL - Lk 3ded TE3OL
01" 19 67'260°G 56869 IS'£00°8 00" 00T ET SIOIOLIZUCT IUTEN 2 JTedoy 000" 0E6-5LF-20C
(v cp) GETE85°E co"0 {6 e80T 000052 soTTddng ooueusiuten » artedsy 000" GLL-SLY-20T
0oto 00 00s 0070 000 00°00% TTQO % QUTTOSED 000" 9FL-SLF-Z0C
TR 98°66 627 L ¥1°09 00" 02T SIPOTPIN 000 Z2L-5L-202
000 007078 0070 00°0 00°0%5 uotiesuaduo) §,IS)I0N 000" 0ZL-SLF~Z0T
0T'9¢ 07 982’2 oo 09°€92'T 00°'005°E uoTSUad 000" 8TL-SLF-Z0T
00°0 007002 0070 00°0 00002 aTqTIoNpad eouRINsul T00°9TL-SLF-Z0T
TL°BE §5°902°¢ ZLTSLT GFEGE’T 00°009 ‘¢ 3DUBINSUI 2JT1/Te}TdSOH 000" 9TL-SLF-Z0C
AR:Y LT ELE 0T TE £4°962 00" 0ES Altanpeyg TRTDOS 000" STL-GLF-Z0C
3 6% £5°082'% LS TTS LY 612'F 000058 Swty TT0d - TIeoxded D00 Z0L-GLF-20Z
S80TAISE DIIJBREL ~ Giy ddsg
GZ°G¥ 76°Z8S ST 0L %LE 90" LLB'ET 00°0%% ‘82 SDURUDJUTRHN 2UTINOY - £9% 3ded Te30L
00" %9 00°088°2 00°0 00 0ZT’S 00700078 §I030eI3U0D JUTEN 3 xteday 000" 0E6-£9¥-2072
8V LZ 10°8%9°T £8°8¢¢ 66"TEG 00°00£°Z saTtddng eourusjurel 3 atedsy 000" §LL-E£9%-202
0070 00°00€ 0070 00*0 00°00€ ITO 3 SUTTOSED 000°5¥L-£9%-202
6Z°G¥ Z1 TL £F L 88°85 00°0ET SIBITPSH 000°2ZL-£9%-202
0070 00°0LS 00°0 00°0 007 0LG uoTiesuaduo) S,I@3IoM 000 0ZL-€9F-202
VL"SE BZ ETE’Z 000 ZL98Z'T 007009 ¢ uoTSUS 000 8TL-E9%-202
000 00°01¢ 000 00°0 00"01% 3TATIoNp=C 20UBINSUT T00 3TL-E9%-202
L9°3€E 9E£°90F ‘T FLGLT 79€68°T 00°008‘E aoueRINSUT SITT/TearTdsoH 000 9TL-E5%-207
ZL°GY 95" 86¢ 0L 1 ¥ 15C 00°055§ AjTInoes teroog 000 STL-E9F-202
(A 317 T9°6588°¥ 00°T2S 6L HET'F 00" 0006 swTI TTNd - TTOXAed 000" Z0L-E9F-202
SOUBRUSIUTEN |UTINOY ~ £9f 31dsd
9% LB 00050 ST 00°0 00°056°70T1 007000 02T uotionajsuc) - 16y 3dea [e3ol
9% L8 00 0S50 “ST 000 007056 “FOT QG000 “0ET siojoeIjuon-juler ¥ xredsy Q000 0E6-1SF-202
UOTIOnIISUCT -~ [GF 3430
gainirpusdxy
Z6°99 TE"Z¥6 /85 €LT6EG ‘8T 697182 6TT 00 00Z'8LT SHANAARY TYIOL
Z6°99 1E£°2¥6 85 £LTRER BT 697 LST6TT 00 00C 8LT 000 3deg TellL
Z6799 TE'Z¥6 /85 €L'6E6'8T 69°LCE6TT 00 00Z°8LT TS 30¥ - S3URID 93e3¢ 000°9%5-000-202
000 adsa
Sanuaaadyg
aNnNd IETNLE YOCLYH — Z0g pund
adasen {TYITAONEY) TYITI0ON (FASYHRADEI) ASVIIONT (" TYWIONDY} TYWION LHDANd TAANANYT .ZOHBmHMUmWQ HHEWAN 1D
1909 & AINTIVL £20¢/8¢/20 HLNOW £202/8T/Z0 £2-2202
ATIYIIVAY HO0d ALIATILIOV HONYTYVY CGLA

ZT/8

tabeg

£20Z/8Z/20 DNIANT aQTdIad

INARHDEYd J0 ALID 404 Id04ddd SUQLIANIdXH

ANY dONJAEYT

juswysIed gda
S5g 1I9sN

WY L0:0T £202/9T/€0



S6°8¥% (95°5%9 82} 00°TeS €T (PP 9LV LT} (007021 '99) SHYNLIANHEIXHE % SHONIARY A0 LAN
29729 L87L8G7LE €L BFE'S £T°CEL'9FT 00°0ZE‘FET SHANLIANEIXHE TYIOL
Z6°99 TE"C¥6 ‘85 £L°6E6 8T 697 LST 61T 00700 8LT SEOANTATI TYLOL
QNN LATELS MOLYW - ¢0Z pundg
z9°2Z9 L8°L857L8 £.°8%€'s €T ZELOFT 00°0ZE'FEZ STANLIANIIXE THLOL
ZL°ST £5°620°6T TT 596 °T LE06E°E 000zl ‘e UCTIeIlSTUTUDY - g8% 3ded Telol
000 00°000 ‘02 000 00°0 0000008 PEOUIRAQ DATIBIISTUTWDY 000 096-28%-20%
00°00T (09°0T8°T!} 09°0T8"T 0%°0T8°T 0070 STIOQUEB TIPS TH 000 566-28%-20%
55729 6% L g€ T IR RAS 0002 SIeD TIPSR 000 ZZL~-Z8%-20%
oot o 00°ST 000 00°0 00°ST uoTlesusduoy) §,IS{I0M Q00" 0CL-28%—-20C
L 8F 5% "95¢C 000 FASEN A 00°00% uoTsuag 000" 8TL-Z8F—-2C0C
octo o0 oY 0ot o0 Q070 o0 0¥ STATISNPSJ 8DJUBINISUL TO0 9TL-E8F-20T
70°GL 8L762T FI"6% ZZ°06¢ 007025 SDURINSUT SITT/Te1TdSOH 000" 9TL-28F-202
62 TL £6°12 88§ LV ES 00" 5L AjTanosg TETDOS 000 STL-28F—20%
IF 0L LB B9E IT L6 £1°088 0070621 swrL TTWd - TTOXABR4 000 Z0L-28%-T0T
UOT3eIISTUTUPY - ZBF Fd&d
LS LE T6°8%6 81 627586 60" TOF ‘1T Q00 0GE “0E 20URUSIUTRH ISJUTM - 8L 23dad TeaoL
soInlTpusdxy
ANOI LEEMIS ¥MOCLYH - Z0Z pung
azsn {(TVIRG0ONGY) TVIRION { ST ) (TYINMONGY) TYHMCH LE9aNd dZaNITHY NOILAI¥DSHAd AFGHNN TS
I9ad & AINYIEL €Z0Z/8€/20 HIROH £20C/82/20 £g-ceoe

ATV IIVAY

Z1/9 :@bed

d0d ALIATLOY

HONV'IVE dLA

£208/8¢/20 ONIANY JOI¥EEd

LINARHDIYYd H0 ALID ¥Od LUCdTd HANLIGNHd XA

aNY HONIAMYT

quswmysIed fda
ggg 1I9sn
WY (00T £208/9T/€0



UCTIBRIISTUTRY — £8% ddag

6L 0% ZI1°00% ‘9T S6°0L6 88°662 11T 00°00L LT SOUBRUSIUTEN A93UIM - 8LF 3920 [2a0L
00°00T (B6°6T) 00°0 86°6T 00" o gsorTddng soueusjuter 3 Itedey 000 GLL-8LF-E0T
0070 00°000°9 000 000 000009 a1eEs 000 EGL-8LF-£0E
Z0° 9L P8 GET 00°0 9T 094 00 000t TTO ® SUTTCGSED 000 '9FL-8LF-E0Z
L0 09 68765 £5°6 T1'06 00°0ST SIRDTPRNH 000" ZZL-8LF-E£0C
00°0 00° 059 000 000 000659 uoT wsuaduo] S,I8YION 000 0ZL-8LY-£0T
FETIR 857E9F°C 000 Z¥T9EL’T 00°002'% uoTsUad 000" 8TL-8LF~E0T
00°0 00 052 00" o on°o 00082 FTYTIDNPSC SOUBRINESUT 100 9TL-8LF-£0C
1£°6F 8T 90¥% ¢ 82152 8°E66'T 00 00F ‘% 2ouURINSUI SITT/TeITSOH 000 9TL-8LF-£0T
ZZ'65 07592 89 0% 96 "FBE 00068 AlTanoeg TeTS0S 000" STL-8LF~-E0T
zLT09 L5 GBO‘F 9% "699 CYFIE’9 00 00% ‘0T STy TTnd - TToxAed 000" Z0L-8LF-E0T
SUURUSIUTEN I93UTM - 84§ 3dad
15° 2t ZBTLIE’LT TE TIL BT Z¥E’'8 00099 G2 SODTAISE DTIFFRIL - §LF 3dag TBIOL
co'o 00° 009 00°0 006" 0 00°009 SICI0BIUCD T IUTER 3 ITedoy 000 0€6-GLF-E0T
7862 06°L0L'E 000 01°262'T 0o 000’s geTrddng aoueusjuTer ? Itedsy 000" SLL-CLF-E0Z
0070 00005 000 000 0000 1TO 3 DUTTOSED 000" 9FL-GLF-C0T
L0 ZTF 0118 AR 06 "85 00 0FT SIPD TP 000'22L-5LF-C0T
00" 0 007029 000 000 00 Qz2e uoTjesusduo] s,I2¥I0M 000" 02L-GLF-E0T
90" 1& 6G°LGL1T 000 iFrzve’L 007 000°% UOTEUSG 000 BTL-GLF-E0T
0070 00" 052 00°0 00" o 00052 9TdTIonNpag sRURINSUI TO0 9TL-GLF-E0T
GL°CE €0 I6L'E BE TLT L6 8GET 00°0ST‘F SOUBANSUT BFTT/TRITAS0H 000 9TL-SLF-E0T
L6 T¥ 8T 8PE 75708 28152 00°009 Aqtanosg TeTDOg 000 STL-GLYP-E02
[EARA Z0 e’y G2 204 96 LET'¥ 000086 SWTL TTRE - TToIABRE 000°Z0L-GLF-E02
S80TAX®S DTFIRIL - L 3dea
£6°TH BSTE9E LT 0L %LG ZET9ES‘CT 00° 006762 SOURUSJUTER SUTINOY - £3F 3dag Telo]
ZL°68 0Z° 655 00°0 08 ¥%8°% 00°00%°s SI0IDBIIUOCD " IUTEH ¥ LTedsy 000°0£6-€9F-€02
ZETTT 66°FI0°EC 787862 10°68E 00°00% ‘€ satTddng souru=2lUTEW ¥ ITEdoy 000 SLL-EOF-C0T
00°0 00°60E 0070 000 00°008 TI0 % SUTTOSED 000 9FL-E9F-E0T
£8°0% GL'88 v L ST T9 00°0ST SARDIPSH 000" 2CL-E9F-£02
000 000458 00°0 000 00059 UoT3esUadue] S, ISAOM 000" 0ZL-E9F-£0E
79°0¢ LT €672 000 £L798TT 00°00Z'% uoTsuag 000" 8TL-E9%-€0C
000 00°0S2 00°0 000 00°0G2 21qTIoNPed SOURINSUT T00°9TL-E9F-£0T
L9 1E 8£°900°¢ GLTGLT 79 €66 °T 00°00% ‘F aoueINSUT @ITT/TBITASOH GO0 9TL-E9F-£0T
627 0% 60°88¢E IL°1E 16" 192 00°059 A3tanosg TEINOS 000 5TL-E9F-E0T
B6 0¥ 06°96T79 B6°02S 0T €0€°7 007005701 SWTL [Ind - [[oX&ed 000 20L-E9F-E0T
BOUTUSIUTEH SUTinoy - ¢9v 3daa
S2an3Tpuadxy
65799 B TE9'¥T 6 LOLL 8T"L99 8% 00°00L €L SHANTARY TYIOL
6E°99 ZB8CEY '7E GETLOL'L 8T L99°8F 00 00E’EL 000 3dsqg TE3OL
6£°99 z8'ZL9 52 GETLOL L 8T°L99'8% 00 00E ‘€4 T¢ 10¥ - s3URID 23v35 000 9F5-000-£02
o000 3adsg
SINUIADY
ANAd LTEFELS TYDN0T — £02 pung
assn (TYHEONGY) TYRERMON (ISYMMOHAT) WASYHAEONI  (TUNNONEY) TWRON IA90Nd JIANINY NOILIEDSEd AFRON 19
1904 % HONVIVE £Z02/82/¢0 HLNOW £¢02/82/20 £c-ccie

ATIHEIIEAY

21/ L 1abrg

H04d ALIATILIY

HINYIVE dLX

LNIRHOEYd 40 ALID ¥0d LY0dEd TEQLIANId¥E

£Z0C/8Z/20 ONIANT JOTI¥Ad

aN¥ HEONIATT

quauyoIes :dgd
S585 s4=sN

WY L0:0T £20¢/91/20



8T G¥ (86 CER'LY) 87 L6B T 86806 %1 (00°526 ‘2£) SEANITANTAXE ¥ SHANNIARY J0 LAN

8L°1E 087997 2L Ly 0182 02" 8SL EE 00°S2Z'90T STUNLTANIIXA TELOL
6£°99 78 TE9'¥T SHETLOLTL 8T°199'8¥F 00°008°gL SHNNTASTT TYLOL
ANNE IEAMLS TEI0T - £02 Pung

BL™1E 08°99% 2L Ly 0T8T 0Z°85L'E¢ 00°SZZ 90T SHANLIANAIXET TYLOL
889 8z 58g’'1e TSTEST ZL6LS'T 00596722 UCTIBAISTUTUPY - g8F 3ded Tejoq
0070 o0 000’0z 0070 0070 007000702 Pe2UI=Al 2ATIBRIISTUTURY 000°096-287-20CT
00°08 0G°ZT 8E'T 06721 00-s¢ BABDTPIR 000 Z2ZL-28%-£02
000 06°ST 0070 00°0 00°ST uotiesusduc) $,I93I0M 000" 02L-28%-£02
96 "BE 0G°T8¢E 0070 0§57 €¥e 00°9¢9 UOTSUSI 000°81L-28%F-€02C
000 00708 0070 00" 0 00° 08 STETIONPDJ SOUBINSUT T00"9TL-28%-€0C
£€0°09 6L°65T Fi'6P T¢ 06€ 0o 052 soURINSUT 2ITT/TeITASOH 000 91L-28BP-E0CT
9% €S AT 889 9¥ Ly 00°00L Aatanoeg reTvog 000°STL-28F-20Z
L9789 567619 IT° L6 €0°088 00T005°T Suil TINL - TToIARd 000" 20L-287-£0T

saIniTpuadxyg

AHAd THEILS T¥20T — €07 PUnd

aJ4dsn (T¥RE0NEY) TYE0N (ISYEIDAJ] FISYTIONI {THHIONTGY) TYHMON LEDANT TIANINY HOILAIEI5Ed HHIHAN T2
Iadd % HONEIYL CZ08/82/20 HLNORW fzhT/8T/C0 £e-eene
FIGYTIVAY H0od ALIATLOVY HONWIVE QLX
£Z02/8Z/20 DNICNE doTddd Jusuyoled sdd
SE8S de2s)

Z1/8 iabeg ONIWAHDEYd 40 ALID 904 Id04dUY HUNLTANHIXE dNE HONEAHY WY LO:0T £20T/S9T/€0



FITLTIZ (60°T0Z'0ET) LE"Z90'¢e 60°S5€ TFT 00 FSTTTTL SHUNITONAAXT 3 SANNTAMY 0 LHN

LY TE T6°VEB ‘BET 00°0 80°T12°6% D0'9FT 88T SHTAALIANIAXH 'TVLOL

ZF 00T (LT"992'T) Lkzo0'ze LT"995°00% 00°00E 662 SHANFARY TYIOL

IjuamdoTsASPey PISTIWMOIE -~ (42 PURT

Ly 1E Z6 FEE'BET 0070 80°TITZ ‘65 00°9F1°88T SHANLTANAAXT TYLOL

LF*TE 6 FE6'8ZT 0070 80°TTZ ‘65 00°9FT ‘88T 000 3ded Te3OL

00" 00T (€% °0) 000 EFETIS 6 00°€15°6 osusdxy 389I23U] 000°566-000~T82

00°00T GE*Q 00°0 G9*ZES '8F 00" €€9 ‘8% TedIDUTI—IUSIRITIDY 1G3d 000 T6e6-000-T82

00°0 007000 0€T 00°0 000 00" 000‘0ET PESYIIAD SATIRAISTUTHRY 000°096-000~T5¢2

Q0 001 (005501} (010 00°520°T Q00 TATRS [ROIDBIJUEOD/TRUOTSSSJ0OId 000°008-000-1S52

000 2dag

saIn3Tpuadxd

groor  {(LT'99e’T) L% T90°CZ LT 995008 00 00E“66T SHNNIARY TYLOL

ZF 00T (LT79%2°T! LFTES0°2Z L1996 00€ 00°00¢ "68¢ 000 3deg Te3OL

00" 00T (00"zz2'2) 000 00722z°'¢ g0 o SHOIUBTT=2D8 T 000" F69-000-T52

8966 £8° 566 LY zs0'z2 LT 9FE 862 00" 00£'66C anusAxy XPL Q00" F0F-000-TST

000 23dea

SOENUSARY

JusudoTaAaspay pIRTIuUMOId - [GZ pung

azsn (TYHNIONTY} TYWHMON {ASYIAEOHA) HSVHIONTI  ("TYRHONAY) TYHEON 139008 TEANINY NOTIIdTHOSHA MAFGHAN TD
I5ad % AONYTYE €202/82/20 HINOW £¢0e/8e/e0 £2-2z0e

FTILTIVAY H0d ALIATLOV FONYIVE (LLA

ZI1/6 idbeg

€Z0Z/82/Z0 ONIANA doTdHd

LNAWHOHYd A0 ALID HO4d LdOdHY HUALTANIIXE ANY HONAAMY

juswyoxed :4d
§85 1Issn
WY L0:0T £202/91/€0



TL"8 (EE"DE0'6LT) pote (L9°€£60°LT) (00°p2ZT 96T) SHENLIONEIYE 3 SEANIAT A0 IAN

0Z°0T 00" FZT'9LL 00°0 00°000°02 0052179671 SEANLIANAGXA TYLOL

00°007T (€g-9067°2) 00°0 £€7906°C 0070 SHONIATY TYLIOL

PUNg QURAD SNTNWTIS - $HZ PUNI

0Z°0T 00°PZT'9LT 00°0 00'000°02 00°%ZT 7961 SEINLIANTAXT TYLOL

0Z°0T 00" FZT 9LT 00°0 00000702 00" F2T 96T 000 3d=g TelCL

§6°0F 00" FZE ‘6T 00°0 00°000“0Z 00°FZE ‘6T pund Isylo 03} A0FSURILL 000°666-000-58¢

00°0 00008 ‘9FT 0070 00°0 00 008 ‘97T TATSE TEOIDIRIIUCY/ [RUCTSSRIOI] 000°008-000-58Z

000 21dsg

SHINITPUSAET

00°00T {€€°306°2) 00" 0 ££°906°2C 00°0 SHANTATT TYLOL

00°00T (E£°906°'T) 00°0 ££°906°2 000 000 3dsU TE30L

G0"00T {ccro06'C) 00°0 £€°%06°2 00°0 SNOBUBRTTZOSTH 000 " ¥69-000-98C

o000 2deda

SOTIUDADY

pung jurRId SOTNUTIZ - ST PUng

qasn (TYWEONEGY) TYRAON (ISYEIIEG) HSYMIONT  {TYRHMONEY) TYIRHMON 199009 JIANIRY NOILATYDSHA YAEGHAN 19
909 % AONTIYE £202/82/20 HINOW £20Z/87/20 £2-2202

AT TIVAY ¥0d ALIAIIOY HONYTYE OIX

Z1/0T :9beg

£202/82/Z0 DNIANE dOI¥dd

INEWHDEYd J0 ALID ¥0d IHO4dEd HMOLIANIAXE ONY HOANIATY

Jusugoxed :dd
888 1I?EN
W& L0:0T £202/9T/€0



000071 (ze°LTE6E) 2STL60°TT Z5TLTE 62 aop"o SHYNITANEIXE 3 SENNEAMI A0 LIUN

86 TT 00"s00‘ze 0070 0076667 007000752 SHINLIANEIXT TYIOL

Sz 62T (26 Z1e’L) ZSTLBOTT AR A 4 00°0007g2 SHNNIAZY TYIOL

IpUNT TETIOWDR $,UrIsl9A — I0F pung

86°TT 00°500‘22 00°0 00°566°Z 00 000'se SMINLIANIIXE TYIOL

86°TT 00500722 0¢ o0 00" 56672 00 000 °S2 000 adsa TEzOL

000 00*000‘S 000 0070 00°000°% SNO2URTIIOSTH 000°656-000-T0%

09" %1 00°080°LT 000 0070262 00°000°'02 TAZSE [ENIDBIZUCD/TRUCISSdI0I] 0007 008-000-T0%

goro0T  (00°5L) 000 00°GL 0070 so11ddng SOoUBULlUTEH 3 ITRdaY 000 SLL-000-T0%

000 3dsg

saIniTpusdxyg

Sz 62T  (gq gite’L) Z5°LB0°1T zgrz1e‘ze 00°000°'s2 SHNNTATT TYIOL

ST 6CT (2§ EZTIE’L) ZSTL60TT zGTgre'ee 007000762 000 1deg Telog

00-00T (0O ¥DZ 0T} 0070 00 %02 '0¢ 000 STOSUBRT T20STH 000" 769-000-T0F

LT Z¥E (z5°80T°L) 28TL60°TT Z6°80T°2T 00-po0’s anuaady TeITdED PRINGTIIUOD 000" %L9-000-T0%

000 00700002 000 0oto 00000702 butpung Teaspad I3U30 000" 8ZS-000-T0F

000 3dea

SONUIADYT

pPuUng TETACUDE S,UrI=isA - TO0F pung

aasn (TYHMONGY) TYRRNON (HSVAMDAJ) FASYEEONMI  (IYWHONYY) TYWHMON 195009 GACHINYE NOILITHOSHI HATAON 19
Ioad % AONYTHE £20Z/82/€0 HINOH £70z/82/20 £2-2202

HTEVTIIEAY

Z1/11 :obeg

d0d ALIATILIDV

ZINYIYH aQLA

LNAWNHIYEYd 40 ALID Y04 I1¥0oddd

£702/82/20 SNIUNE qOI¥ud

TANLIANAG XY ONY d0NHARYT

Tuswyored dd
555 iassq)
WY LO:0T E£20Z2/9T/E0



€Z7S6T  {(98°£50 '¥8¥%) Z6 9LL IBT 98°960°0ZE {00°LS6'€9T) STINIIANZIXH ¥ SEANIATY A0 IEN
58709 0L FEG‘SET'T T6 0FE ‘20T 0€°9%8°G9L'T 00" T8L 106 SANNE TV - STHALTANTANA TYIOL
6T°9L ¥8°088°TG9 €8 LTI ¥8C 9T E¥6°680°C 00 Fz8‘LEL’E SONNA TTY - SENNIATT TYICL
L9052 (8B FTO'LL) 9T L9Z 6L 88°FTZ 08 0o0°o0z’c SHMALIANEGXE 3 SHANIATY A0 L3N
95 10T (15°682°Q) 06°GGETT TG 686 ‘8%T 00°00L’9FT SMIALIANAEXE TYILOL
06°¢ST (€ 00E 6L} 90°€29°06 6£ 002622 00006651 SEANNIATT TEIOL
SaNNg EAMES - 06§ pund
96 T0T (T5-6982'2) 06" GSE'TT IS°G86°8FT 007 00L 9FT STANLIANIIXE TYLOL
95°T0T {1658z ¢} 06" GSETT TG GBE6'8FT 00°00L°9%T 000 adsg Te3OL
000 00°00T ‘%1 000 0070 00°00T %71 uoT3IRIIRIdRq 000" 896-000-065
000 00000 ‘0% 000 0070 Q0 000 0% PESUIBAQ BATIRIZSTUTURY 000'096-000-065
000 06 000‘0T 000 0070 00°000°0T £I0IDBIJUOD "JUTRH 3 Itedsy 000" 0£6-000-06%
GETGL ¥1°596 Zz'LZT 98 c€L’T 00" 00E‘2 S2TITITIN 000" 0Z6-000-065
09°86 00" 8¥%T 000 00°2SF ‘0T 007009701 spucd ¥ 80UBANSUT 000" 0T6-000-065
000 00° 006G 000 00°0 00 00§ Telusy wicItun 000" ST8—000-06S
62°95F (S6°TLD'68) 0T"G86°8 S6 TLOFTT 00-000°GE TATSS TENIORIJUO]/TRUCTSSSI0Id 000 008-000-06S
00°00T (EF"LE) 0070 2V LE 000 seTTddng @ourU2lUTEH 3 ITedsy 000" GLL-000-06S
¥9°6§ LOTET Gg 0T £6°8LT 00 00€ 3IBDTPSH 000 ZZL-000-065
0o Q 00008 00°0 000 007 00% uotjesusduc) S,I93I0M 0007 0ZL-000-065
92" 8¢ €9 TRL'S 0070 LETBSGTE 00'00E ‘6 UOTSUS] 000°8TL-000-06%
00" 0 00°00L 000 000 007004 2TqTIoNPag S0UBINSUT 100 9TL-000-06%
1519 TEF9F'E L1°869 69°6£6°G 0o°000's apueinsul a1TI/TelTds0H 000 9TL-000-06%
7995 50°5€9 1L°98 S6°FOL 00 00F°T Ajtznoeg TetTs0S 000" STL-000-06S
10°6S 99°LPE 0T SFBEF'T FETEG9°2T goron0‘ee swil TI0d - TTo3deg 000" Z0L-000-066
000 adeg
saaniTpusdxyg
06°ZST (BET00E‘6L) 907€Z9°06 6£°00Z'62C 00°C066FT SENNAATT TYLOL
06°25T (RETCDE’GL) 30°€Z9°06 6E"00Z'622 00 006 °6FT 00C¢ 3deqQ T®IOL
00°0 00" 006°T 000 00" 0 00°006'T SIUSWASIAUT U0 1§2I57UT 000" %29-000-065
LB PST (6£-00C'18) 90°E£Z% ‘06 6£"00Z 7622 00 000°8FT SBOTAIDG JBMOG 000°929-000-065
000 adsa
Sonusnsy]
aNNd dHEMAS - (65 PUNd
asEsn ("TYREOREY ) TYRHON (ASYTEDAd) ASYMNONI  (TYRHMONTY) ‘TWWAON LADANT ORANINY NOIIdT¥0sHa NIFHON 19
Ioad % TN TYL £202/82/20 HINOW €e0z/8¢/e0 £2-2202
ATIYTTEAY 404 ALIAILDY ADNTIVE ALK

Z1/Z21 rabedg

€Z02/82/20 DNIUNI dCI¥Ed

LNIWHDYYd A0 XLID ¥0d 1H0dHEY HYALIANEdXH ONY dNNIATT

Juswuyosaed dd
g988 I8

WY L0:0T £202/91/E0



KALAMAZOO AREA TRANSPORTATION STUDY

CALL TO ORDER

TECHNICAL COMMITTEE MEETING
MINUTES FEBRUARY 9, 2023 - 9:30 A.M.

The February 9, 2023 Technical Committee Meeting was called to order at 9:30 a.m. at Kalamazoo

Metro, by Vice-Chair Stefforia.

ROLL CALL

Meeting attendance was recorded on the sign-in sheet. Introductions were made by all present.

MEMBERS PRESENT

Christina Anderson
Muhammad Arif
Joe Belka

Chris Bessert
Mickey Bittner
Heather Bowden
Eric Feldt

Josh Grab
Kendra Gwin
Robert Henderson
Jeff Heppler

Joel Hoort

Iris Lubbert

Tom Palumbo
Dennis Randolph
Kathy Schultz
Paul Sotherland
Jodi Stefforia, Vice-Chair
Nancy Stoddard
Greg Viietstra
George Waring

OTHERS PRESENT

Phil Doorlag

Jamie Harmon
Martin Janssen
Elizabeth Rumick
Jon Start

Steve Stepek, AICP
Ali Townsend

City of Kalamazoo

City of Portage

Michigan Department of Transportation, TSC
Kalamazoo County

Village of Paw Paw (Wightman & Associates)
Michigan Department of Transportation, Statewide Planning
City of Portage

Michigan Department of Transportation, Region
City of Portage

Van Buren Public Transit

Village of Augusta

Van Buren County Road Commission
Oshtemo Township

City of Kalamazoo

City of Kalamazoo

Central County Transportation Authority
KATS Citizens Advisory Commitiee
Comstock Township

City of Parchment

Kalamazoo County Transportation Authority
City of Kalamazoo

Wightman & Associates

City of Portage

Kalamazoo County Transportation Authority
Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study
Citizen

Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study
Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study

TC Minutes 2/9/23 Page 1 of 5




CHANGES OR ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

There were no changes or additions to the agenda.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Gwin moved, and it was duly seconded by Schultz, “to approve the agenda of the February 9,
2023 Technical Committee Meeting.” MOTION CARRIED.

MINUTES FROM THE JANUARY 12, 2023 MEETING

Schultz moved, and it was duly seconded by Feldt, “to approve the minutes from the January 12,
2023 Technical Committee Meeting.” MOTION CARRIED.

POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT

Stepek reported the January Policy Committee meeting was cancelled. The next meeting is
scheduled for February 22, 2023.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

No citizens’ comments were made.

FY 2023-2026 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMEMNT PROGRAM AMENDMENTS

Noting the amendments are included in the packet, Stepek stated there are three safety project
additions, a bridge project increase, and a Metro Transit project budget increase. Staff recommends
approval of the Transportation Improvement Program Amendments and presentation to the Policy
Committee for approval.

Arif moved, and it was duly seconded by Heppler, “to approve the FY 2023-2026 Transportation
Improvement Program Amendments.” MOTION CARRIED.

RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR STATE TARGETS FOR BRIDGE, PAVEMENT, AND
RELIABILITY

Stepek reported Michigan Department of Transportation notices and corresponding bridge,
pavement, and reliability newsletters are included in the meeting packet for your reference.
Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPO) are required to support state targets even if we adopt our
own. For this reason, Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study has traditionally adopted the state
resolutions. Page 30 in the packet highlights performance by MPO and page 31 is a summary of the
overall data with desired trends noted. The reliability performance measure percentage could be
100% reliably bad or 100% reliably good. KATS Staff recommends the Vice-Chair sign approval of
the resolution of support on behalf of the committee, and to approve the presentation of the resolution
to the Policy Committee,

Feldt moved, and it was duly seconded by Schultz, “to approve the Resolution of Support for
State Targets for Bridge, Pavement, and Reliability.” MOTION CARRIED.

URBANIZED AREA DISCUSSION

Stepek provided information that the geographies of the urban areas have now been released.
Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study (KATS) Staff prepared the maps enclosed in the meeting
packet which show the old Kalamazoo Urbanized Area boundary and the new 2020 Census Data
Urbanized Area that will be in place until the next census in 2030. Once Michigan Department of
Transportation (MDOT) reviews and updates the boundaries, KATS will align ours. Then KATS will
begin the national functional classification process. The Kalamazoo urban area shrunk and lost 5,000

TC Minutes 2/9/23 Page 2 of 5



people from the last census in 2010 but this is a direct result of Mattawan being changed to its own
small urbanized area. Richland, Schoolcraft, and Lawton will be added to the Rural Task Force for
funding. The Kalamazoo region may experience a small increase of $20 to $25 thousand dollars in
the Transportation Improvement Program. In response to Lubbert's inquiry, Stepek elaborated the
U.S. Census Bureau changed their definition of an urbanized area from population density to housing
density. This is the main cause of how all urban areas shrunk. A second reason urban areas shrunk
is the fact that skips and jumps were eliminated. In the previous census, if an urbanized boundary
ended at a lake, it could jump and cross the lake. Or if a boundary ended a quarter of a mile from
area to area, it could jump and continue. Stepek clarified there is no change in the planning boundary
from KATS. After KATS receives data from MDOT, we plan to get volunteers for a subcommittee to
work on the new boundaries and maximize funding. This official new boundary likely won't be
adopted until calendar year 2025.

RAISE GRANT NOTICE OF FUNDING OPPORTUNITY-PROJECT DISCUSSION

Stepek reported the City of Kalamazoo applied for a RAISE grant. Let Sfepek know if any agency
would like a resolution of support from Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study for any planned grant
applications.

SUBCOMMITTEE UPDATES

NON-MOTORIZED SUBCOMMITTEE- The Subcommittee met January 18, 2023. As previously
discussed, the Subcommittee is working on adding an accurate non-motorized layer to Google Maps
for the Kalamazoo region. Townsend reported the Subcommittee discussed adding information to
pop-up boxes. Google data sharing maps has four designations for non-motorized trails: trails,
dedicated lanes, bicycle friendly, and dirtfunpaved trails. One type of facility will be uploaded at a
time, starting with shared use pathways. Subcommittee and public feedback on pathway inaccuracies
is being solicited until the next quarterly meeting anticipated in April. Corrections have been made to
the map but are not yet reflected on the interactive map.

COMPLETE STREETS IMPLEMENTATION PLAN- Last month's kickoff meeting went well.
Mickelson is compiling information. Another meeting will be held in the future.

TRAFFIC SIGNAL COORDINATION- Stepek reported the first Traffic Signal Coordination
Subcommittee meeting provided discussion on which agencies are coordinating already, and what
others are doing. The Subcommittee will continue to meet quarterly.

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION UPDATES

Schultz reported the Kalamazoa Metro/Central County Transportation Authority Comprehensive
Operational Analysis (COA) is essentially wrapped up. The final report will be posted fo the Metro
website and be presented ta the Central County Transportation Authority/Kalamazoo County
Transportation Authority board at their meeting on Monday, February 13, 2023 at 11:30 a.m. The
consultant will return in April for a final sign off. In the fall, changes may begin to be implemented on
the fixed route system. Plans are underway to incorporate Microtransit. Metro has met with potential
vendors to gather data on cutsourcing the service versus keeping it in-house. Microtransit roll-out is
anticipated to begin the first half of 2024. As always, please let Schultz know of any construction
projects that many impact bus routes.

STATUS REPORTS
ROADS-

Belka provided the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) update that the US-131, from
Shaver to M-216 (8.4 miles) was let on February 3, 2023 and came in just under estimate.
Construction could begin as early as May 1, 2023 and is scheduled for final completion by June 13,

TG Minutes 2/9/23 Page 3 of 5




2025, Milling and multicourse overlay will be done on M-2186 to north of Michigan Avenue and south
of YZ Avenue to N of XY Avenue. Reconstruction in the Village of Schoolcraft will include median
crossover removal at county road intersections, and replacement with indirect jeft turn lanes. GTR
Railroad will be reconstructed. Signal reconstruction will occur at Eliza and Shaver and upgrade at
Lyons. |-94 at Portage Road deck pours were delayed. However, work is now ongoing with the first of
two deck pours for the Portage Road bridge this week and early next week. Work is also continuing
on the railroad bridges and soundwall. The WB 1-94 on ramp from Portage Road will have a 45-day
closure in the future but it is unknown at this time when that will begin. Tree removal and clearing will
begin on March 1, 2023 for the M-40 project in Lawton. The project includes mill and overlay,
sidewalk and crosswalk improvements, and a culvert replacement. The project has an anticipated
completion date of August 23, 2024,

Randolph reported the City of Kalamazoo is planning lots of street projects and sidewalk work. The
biggest project will be on Michigan Avenue where two lanes will be removed, crack filling will be
done, and bike lanes will be added. Plans are being finalized for the Ransom Road project slated for
summer. The city is working on creating a GIS map that would be available to the public. The city is
gearing up for an anticipated six-year long downtown street conversion project beginning with
Kalamazoo Avenue. The city received $750 thousand dollars of safety money which will be used for
traffic calming activities expected to begin in summer. Waring added the Patterson Street bridge
project will begin February 27, 2023 which entails closing the road. Michigan Avenue from Lowell to
Main project will begin April 3, 2023.

Harmon reported the City of Portage opened bid last week for two projects. The Shaver Road project
and the Portage Road project came in 6 percent under and 2 percent over, respectively. Construction
will begin on both projects this year. The majority of the Shaver Road project will be completed next
year. The South Westnedge project will be in the April bid letting: Other projects are under design.

Heppler reported the Village of Augusta is planning an extensive water project in 2023. Two water
mains crossing M-96 and effected roads will be replaced.

LAND USE/PLANNING AND ZONING-

Bessert reported Kalamazoo County just completed the ArcGIS jumpstart which will allow more
collaboration between agencies. Users will be able to edit the data live in the database. The County is
working to switch online public mapping from ESRI servers to in-house servers. The Road
Commission Region Map Book is being put in GIS.

Anderson updated the City of Kalamazoo is updating the Stuart Neighborhood and Westwood
Neighborhood plans. The City plans to update the downtown parking system using data from a study
done in 2018. Design includes curbside use considerations, parklets, and sidewalk cafes. The City
ray revise the current contract or create an RFP for a new provider. Commercial zoning codes are
being updated with anticipated completion in July. Residential district zoning updates will follow.

Feldt reiterated the City of Portage Comprehensive Plan update continues. Feldt reminded attendees
to complete the City's Mater Plan on-line survey which ends next week.

NEW BUSINESS

Stepek reminded attendees to submit traffic count requests. After next manth’s Technical Committee
meeting, Traffic Count consultant Brian Burlingham will be available,

Stepek announced recent news of funding opportunities from the Michigan Infrastructure Office. A
total of $25 million dollars has been made available to regions for technical assistanice to apply for
Infrastructure Investments and Job (IJA) Grants. The Kalamazoo region allocation is $240 thousand
dollars and $750 thousand dollars to match grants, Upcoming meetings and discussions will
determine how to proceed.

TC Minutes 2/9/23 Page 4 of 5



PUBLIC COMMENTS

Citizen Start asked if Kalamazoo County is adding utilities to the public GIS maps. Stepek responded
that both utilities and the Road Commission of Katamazoo County opted out of doing so. Start
pointed out that walking on downtown sidewalks is problematic and challenging for the visually
impaired due to restaurant seating on sidewalks.

Sotherland asked members to imagine Kalamazoo becoming known as a bicycling destination,
pointing out the significant improvements already made plus the potential for further transformation.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 10:33 a.m.

The next meeting of the Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study Technical Committee will be held on
Thursday, March 9, 2023 af 9:30 a.m.

Approved 3/9/23 (er}

TC Minutes 2/9/23 Page 5 of 5




Kindleberger Park Reservation Form

—_ Sunken Garden/Gazebo ($350 non-resident/$250 reSIdent) (3 hour block)
Includes $100 refundable deposit

Stage ($450 non-resident/$300 resident) (3 hour block) /ncludes $100 deposit

______Picnic Pavilion 1 Upper ($100 non-resident, $50 resident)
_____Picnic Pavilion 2 Upper ($100 non-resident, $50 resident)
—Picnic Pavilion 3 Upper ($100 non-resident, $50 resident) (4 hour block)
Picnic Pavilion 4 Lower ($100 non-resident, $50 resident) (4 hour block)
Plcmc Pavilion 5 Lower (5100 non-resident, $50 resident) (4 hour block)

Name: mt@‘ﬂ N\O(@\} Phone ﬁ%’f@ 0/
Address: 47761 “GUU’“D(“ %’)’ C/NW

Email: K(?\(Cﬂ ash ’ﬁ\f?aé‘}‘:}%‘ﬂl Con?  Atternate Phone: _
Date of Event: M ’9?7 v , Time: Qﬁ) i) ﬁ(:;mw’]
Type of event: tg')’;?‘t) W Q\W ' \

Approximate number of attendees ,—,Z(j)

(4 hour block)
(4 hour block)

Will there be music as part of your event? J})(’B
Name of DJ, musical performer, sound technician;

. femos S (Gt'r\ oy

Name & address for dep03|t return: .

Decoiatlons rental chal égten ftables? gescnbe ol (‘I)\(B o (’ f(’U{W

an O\\O{M/ i | - %Q’Q@

Signature i Date
This reservat/on form is your receipt, conﬁrmmg your reserved area. Should you

experience any problem during your event, please contact the Kalamazoo
Township Police Department at 269-488-8911.

FOR INTERNAL OFFICE U&%
Application received by: '

Date: %q %%

Payment amount received: JﬁOO Receipt #
Check # Cash Credit g
APPROVAL

RECEIVEIDD
Signature Date



To: Parchment City Commission

From: Parchment Parks and Recreation Committee

Re: Recommendations for Parchment Tree Enhancement Program
Date: March 20, 2023

As charged by the Parchment City Commission, the Parks and Recreation Committee makes the
following recommendations regarding a tree enhancement program in the City of Parchment.
These recommendations are in response to the first objective under Goal 1 of the City of
Parchment Community Parks and Recreation Plan. That objective states: “Develop an
integrated tree enhancement and replacement program that involves the entire City including
Kindleberger Park.” (p.28).

With that objective in mind, the Committee recommends the following two-part tree
enhancement program:

Part 1. Tree enhancement in public spaces including but not limited to Kindleberger
Park, Devon Park, Commerce Lane Riverfront Park, and City Hall Park.
e Contract with experienced arborist to evaluate tree health on all City properties.
¢ Contract with an experienced arborist to recommend appropriate trees for planting.
Criteria for tree selection might include:
v' Native species, disease resistance, wildlife/bird habitat and food enhancement,
adaptability to a changing climate, etc.
» Mire a professional to develop a plan/design for appropriate planting sites in all locations.
 Develop, with the help of a professional arborist, a systematic plan for newly planted tree
care, particularly watering.
* Suggested funding source to hire professionals might include DNR Community Forestry
Grant Program (examples of 2023 awards included with this recommendation).
¢ Funding sources for the systematic purchase and planting of trees might include:
v’ Parchment Tree Enhancement Fund. Establish an on-going fund to receive
community donations in support of tree purchase and planting in public areas.
v’ Offer individuals and families opportunity to “purchase and adopt” a tree in public
areas of the city. Create a program that clearly acknowledges donor support.
v Pursue grant funding directed to tree purchase. This might include the Community
Forestry program as well as other local funding sources.
v" Make sure that tree planting is consistent with the established plan for tree
enhancement.

Part 2. Tree enhancement through an educational program for City residents
e Develop an educational program series on best tree selection and planting practices for
individual homeowners.
e Partner with the Parchment Community Library for the development and promotion of
the program series.
¢ Engage experienced professionals to present programs.



Program topics might include best trees for small spaces, proper planting techniques,
native trees, identifying disease problems in trees, climate change and trees,
demonstration of proper planting and pruning techniques.

Obtain trees donated by local nurseries to be used as prizes in a drawing available to local
residents

Seasonal programs might be held in Kindleberger Park and include hands-on
demonstrations of tree planting techniques, tree disease recognition and treatment,
pruning techniques, etc.

Depending on amount of stipends necessary for speakers and other program costs,
funding sources might include a small grant from the Harold and Grace Upjohn
Foundation or other local foundations.



To Whom it May Concern,

Parchment Little League is looking to have an opening day parade on Saturday, April 29", Parade to
begin at 9am. Parade route would be leaving Parchment High School, left onto G Ave, left on Riverview,
left on Parchmount, right on Orient, right on Glendale, left on Maple, left on Park, ending at
Kindleberger Park entrance. Parade will hopefully be done by 9:45 if not sooner.

Thanks so much and please let me know if you have any further questions!

Jennifer Ellard
Parchment Little League Board Secretary
269.910.8257




